CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements
together with the

Independent Auditors’” Report

for the yearended 31 March 2021



CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Financial statements together with the Independent Auditors’
Report
for the vear ended 31 March 2021

Contents
Independent Auditors™ Report
Consolidated Balance sheet

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Notes to the financial statements



BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Telophana: +91 22 6267 1000

1dth Floor, Central Wing B Wing and MNorth C Wing, e +0133 8287 1010

Mesco IT Park & Nesco Center,
Weestern Express Highway, Goregaon |East),
Murmbal - 400 083

Independent Auditors’” Report

To the Members of
CMS Info Systems Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

O pinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMS Info Systems Limited (hereinafter
referred Lo as the "Holding Company™} and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheer as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
comsolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hersinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such
subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Aet™) in the manner so required and give a e
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Groupas at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
43010} of the Act. Our responsihilities under those SAs are further deseribed in the Audiror's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a} of
the “Other Matters™ paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

Crther Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible tor the other information.
The other information eomprises the information included in the holding Company's Director’s repost,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditors” report thereon.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
CMS Info Systems Limited

Other Information (Conrinued)

Our opinion on the consolidared tinancial statements does not cover the ather information and we do
nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated [inancial statement or our knowledge obhtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated, I, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit
report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Manugement’s and Board of Dircctors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fairview ofthe consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profiv loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting prineiples generally accepted in Tndia, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under seetion 133 of the Act. The respective Management aind
Board of Directors of the compunies ineluded in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safesuarding the assets of each
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate gecounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring aceuracy and completeness of the accounting reconds, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated fnancial statements that give atrue and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, which have been used far the purpose of preparation
ol the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Directors ol the Holding Company, @
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Managemem and Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial siatements
as g whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial siatements.

b
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
CMS Info Systems Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continucd)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perfom audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal conirol.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference o the
consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such contrals based on our
audit.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concem
hasis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 10 events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. 1f we conclude that a material
uneertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as @ going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures. and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinien on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial information of such entilies included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements. which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in
paragraph (1) of the section titled *Other Matters® in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the
other auditors referred t in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matlers paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among ather matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any signiticant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
CMS Info Systems Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Auditof the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 10 communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

Other Matters

{a)

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of five subsidiaries. whose
finaneial statements/financial information reflect total assets (before conselidation adjustments)
of Rs. 1,959,97 million asat 31 March 2021, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments)
of Rs. 2,590.60 million and net cash outflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to
Rs. 239.11 million for the vear ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements/financial information have been audited by other audios
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidaed
financial statements, inso far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3)of Section 143 of the Act. inso far
as itrelates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect w
aur reliance on the work done and the reports af the other auditors.

Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of repons
ofthe other auditorson separate financial statementsof such subsidiaries as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the *Other Matters' paragraph, we report, 1o the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ow
knowledpge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The consolidated balance sheet. the consolidated statement of profit and less (including other
comprehensiveincome), theconsolidated statement of changes inequity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companics incorporated in India is disqualified as
on 3| March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

1 With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial controls with reference 1o financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A"

4
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
CMS Info Systems Limited

Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements (Continued)

B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of owr
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate (inancial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the
*Other Matters' paragraph:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31
March 2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable |osses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2021.

iii.  There are no amounts which are required 10 be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or itssubsidiary companies incorporared in India
during the year ended 31 Mareh 2021,

iv.  The disclosures in the consolidated Mnancial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the
financial year ended 31 March 2021,

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
reports of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were
not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporae
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W- 100022

oA

/
Kaosai Lehery

Mumbai Partner
25 May 2021 Membership No: 1123949

ICATUDIN:21 112399AAAABK 1992
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CMS Info Systems Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements of CMS Info Systems Limited for the year ended
31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Chpinion

In conjunetion with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of CMS Info Systems Limited (hereinafter referred toas“the Holding

Company™) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its
subsidiary companies, as of that date,

Inour opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India whichare its subsidiary
companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference W
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consalidated financial
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India{lhe “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilitiesinclude the design, implemeniation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable linancial information,
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hercinafier referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements hased on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were esiablished and maintained and il such controls eperated
effectively in all material respects.
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CMS Info Systems Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements of CMS Info Systems Limited for the yvear ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

Auditors® Responsibility (Contined)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectivenes
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Lnancial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
stalements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the avditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
finaneial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference 1o conselidated [inancial stalements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those palicies and procedures that { 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted aceounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because ofthe inherent limitations ofinternal financial controls with reference to conselidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to Tulure periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in canditions. or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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CMS Info Systems Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements of CMS Info Systems Limited for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143{3)(i) ofthe Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
thie internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ginancial statements insofar as il relates o
four subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India,

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountantys
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
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CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the Yeor ended Mireh 11, 2031
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Consplidated Statement of Cash flows
Jor e ywar snced March 11,2031
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CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million)

i)

b)

Corporate Information:

CMS Info Systems Limited (the *Company” or the "Holding Company" or the *Parent’) is a
Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act.
1936. The Company became subsidiary of Sion Investment Holdings Pte. Limited (with
effect from August 27, 2015), the ultimate Holding Company is Baring Private Equity Asia
GP VI Limited pursuant to acquisiion of [00% shares from BLAC KSTONE FP
CAPITAL PARTNERS (MAURITIUS) V LTD, CMS Computers Limited, Mr. Ramesh
Grover and others (together known as *erstwhile shareholders’).

The Company and its subsidiaries (logether known as the *Group') is enpaged in the
business of providing ATM and Cash Management services, supply, installation and
maintenance of ATM and cash deposit machines, and also engaged in card trading and
personalization services. The repistered office of the Company is located at T-151, 5"
Floor, Tower No.10, Sector 11, Railway station complex, CBD Belapur, Navi Mumbai
400614

The consolidated financial statements (*CFS"”) were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on May 25, 2021.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

Basis of Preparation

The Group’s CFS have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 20135, as
amended under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) and subsequent
amendments thereof, The CFS have been prepared under the historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value (refer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The CFS are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR” or “T') in million, which is also the
Group’s functional currency. The CFS are prepared on a going concern basis.

Current versus non=current ¢lassification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current ! non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

u Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
or expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used (o seitle a
liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-Curment.
A liability is current when it is:

. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle and 1s due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor year ended March 3¢, 2024

(T in million)

2.

b)

€)

Summary of significant accounting poelicies: (Continued)

Current versus non-current classification (Continued)

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The
operating cycle 1s {he time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified period of twelve months
as ils operating cycle.

Basis of consolidation and consolidation procedures:

The CFS comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as al
March 31, 2021

The list of entities, controlled by the group, which are included in the CFS are as under

i Sr. Mame ol entities* - Percentage of uwnership interest us at 1
S March 31,2021 March 31,2020
I %ecuritrans Indin Private Limited {'"SIPL-} () |0
2 MBS Mecuntas Limited (CSL) 1 Ui L
3 WS Marshall Lumted ("CML7 100 100
! d Quality Logistics Services T'rivole Limiited [ IV
l\i CMB Securitas Employees Welfare Trusl {'CMS 100 (oo
Trust™} |

+ All entities are incorporated and have place of business in India

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, 10 variable retumns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group contrals an investee iFand only if the Group has:

. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee),

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e The ability to use its power over the investee 1o affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes lo one or more of the three elements of control.
Cansolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets. liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the CF%
(rom the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for vear ended March 31, 2021

(¥ in million)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)
<) Basis of conselidation and consolidation procedures: (Continued)

All the companies in the Group follow uniform accounting policies for like transactions

and other events in similar circumstances. The finaneial statements of all entities used for

the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the parent

company, i.e., year ended on March 31,2021

Consolidation procedures:

(i) Combine like items of assets, liahilifies. equity, income, expenses and cash flows of
the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of
the subsidiarics are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in
the CFS at the acquisition date.

(i)  Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary
and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy
explains how to account for any related goodwill / capital reserve.

(iiiy Eliminate in full intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses
resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assers. such as inventory
and Property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the CFS. Ind ASI2 applies ta
temporary differences that arise from the climination of profits and losses resulting
from intra group transactions,

d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use While
deriving cost, refundable taxes and discounts are excluded. Borrowing cost relating Lo
acquisition of tangible assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are
ready to be put to use. Capital work in progress is stuted at cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost i§ recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All olher repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised 15
derecognised upon dispasal or when ne fulure economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Group provides depreciation on property, plant and equipment using the straight line
method at the rates computed based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as estimated
by the management which are in most cases equal (o the corresponding rates prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Act. Certain assets are depreciated at lower rates.




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor year ended Marel 31, 2024

(T million)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

i) Property, plant and cquipment (Continued)

The Group has used the following lives 1o provide depreciation:

Cutepory Useful lives

{in years)
Plant and machinery T
Electrio installatons 5*
Furmiture, fistures ond fittings T4
Yehicles tused for ATM and Cash Management husiness) 6*
Diher vehicles 3
(2MTice equipment 5
Computers servers and penpherals Tt b

*The Group, based on technical assessment made by the management, depreciates certain
items of plant and equipment and vehicles (used for ATM and Cash Management business)
over the estimated useful lives which are different from the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Act The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be
used.

Leasehold improvemenis are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, which does not exceed 7 years.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed a1 each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, il
appropriate.

e) Intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets recognised in a business combination is their fair value al the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Intangible assets ar¢ amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the iniangible assets may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible asscts with finite nseful
lives are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively. if

appropriate.
Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life as
follows:
| Partiulars Useful Life
Computer sotwire Ner yuirs
Customer contracts | fair vahue of business combination) 5-b years
Customer contracts {purchnsed) 2-3 years
Mon-compete Foes B vears  (non-Compele
perind)




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for year ended March 31, 2021

(¥ in million)

Z.

€)

£)

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Intangible assets and goodwill (Comtinned)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually at the cash-generating unit level

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the assel’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an assel’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fuir value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individoal asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recovernble amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cosls afl
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate vauation model is used,

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulutions
which are prepared separately for each of the Group®s CGU to which the individual assets
are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of
five years. For longer periods, wherever applicable, a long term growth rate is caleulated
and applied to projected future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the produets, industries, or country
or couniries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. Afier impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Leases

The group adepted Ind AS 116, leases (which replaces earlier standard Ind AS 17) using
the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of April
I. 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient Lo not reassess whether a contract 15
or contains a lease at April 1, 2019. The group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases and hence the group has not considered recognition
exemptions for any of its leases. The group recognizes lease liahilities to make lease
payments and right of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.



CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Counfinued)
for year ended March 31, 2021

(T inmillion)

2.

o)

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The effect of adoption Ind AS 116 as at April 1, 2019 is given in notes 1o accounts, Refer
Noie 29, The lease liabilities were discounted using the incremental borrowing rate (same
as group average borrowing rate) of the group as at April 1.2019.

The group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it

-

i)

Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately hefore the date of
initial application

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-ol-use asset at the
date of initial application

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to
extend or terminate the lease

Right-of-use assets

The group recognizes right-of-use assels al (he commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured ol
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al
of before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of use
assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the ussets,

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the group recognizes |ease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable; variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, il the lease term
reflects the group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred
to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment oeeurs,

>



CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for year ended March 31, 202/

(¥ in million)

2.

g)

h)

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

i) Lease liability (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit i the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carry ing amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change mn the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The group does not apply the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases (ie., those leases that have o lease term of 12 months or less [rom the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and low-valug assets
recognition exemption.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental INCOMme arsing
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss due lo its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost of irading goods, stores and spares is determined on a weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 10 make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. after
deduction of any trade discounts, velume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the sovernment such as goods and services tax, ete. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not oecur.

The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it
is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credil risks.

The specific recognition crileria described below must also be met before revenue is

recognised.
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1

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at point in time when control of the products
being sold is transferred to our customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled
obligations, The Performance Obligations in our contracts are fulfilled at the time of
dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceplance tepending on customer terms.

The group provides and commits preventive maintenance services on its certain products at
the time of sale for one or two years from the date the sale. These maintenance services are
sold together with the sale of product. Contracts for such sales of product and preventive
maintenance services comprise two performance obligations because the promises 1o
transfer the product and to provide the preventive maintenance services are capable of
being distinct. Accordingly, a portion of the transaction price is allocated to the preventive
maintenance services and recognised as a contract liability. Revenue is recognised over the
period in which the preventive maintenance services are provided based on the time
elnpsed.

Sale of services:

Revenue from ATM and cash management services, card personalization services and
allied operations is recognised over lime when the required services are rendered in
accordance with the contracts / agreements entered into with the customer and is disclosed
net off deductions for shortages, ete. charged by the customers as per the terms of the
agreement

Revenue from annual maintenance confracts is recognised, over the period of the
maintenance contract.

Revenue recognized, in excess of billing is classified as unbilled revenue: while billing in
excess of revenue is classified as unearned revenue.

Sale of ATM Sites:

Revenue from sale of ATM sites is récognised based on customer acceptance received on
completion of the ATM siles as per the terms of agreement entered with the customers.

Interest income:

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate (*EIR’). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortised cost of a financial lability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the respective entities of the
Group at their respective functional currency spot rates, at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spol rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expenses
in the period in which they arse.

Nan-monetary items that are measured in terms of histerical cost in a foreign currency are
transiated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The
Group has no obligation other than the contribution payahle to the provident fund The
Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenses, when an
employee renders the related service

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation done as per projected unit credit method, carried oul by an independent
actuary af the end of the vear. The Group makes contributions to a trust administered and
managed by an insurance company to fund the gratuity liability. Under this scheme, the
obligation to pay gratuity remains with the Group, although insurance company
administers the scheme.

Net interest is calculated by applving the discount rale to the net detined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit ahligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss - Service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements and
net interest expense or income.

Remeasurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets. (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through OCI in the period in which they cccur. Remeasurements are not reclussified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 maonths, is treated
as short term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as
the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be
carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The Group presents the
leave as a short-term provision in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right 1o defer its settlement for 12 menths after the reporting date.
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m)

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continned)

Retirement and other employee benefits (Continued)

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC! in
the period in which they occur.

In¢come taxes

Currenl income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured al the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act,
1961 The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation 1o
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates posilions taken in the tax returns with respect Lo situations in which applicable
ax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

Deferred mx

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying

amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporling purposes and the corresponding

amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary dilferences, except in
respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred Lax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that il is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-nssessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred lax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities: and the deferred tax assets
and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,

Deferred tax refating to items not recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
recognised either in OCI or in equity (where the item on which deferred tax is ansing 1s
recognised). Deferred tax on differences arising in business ¢ombination is recognised in
Goodwill,
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Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders
(after adjusting the cost recognised in the current year in relation 1o emplovee stock
options schemes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares inlo equity shares

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it ig probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the abligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented i the Statement
of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursenent, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate thiat reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent linbility is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
everts beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a linbility that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at
banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.
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Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Share based payment

Employees (including senior management) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settied transactions),

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment
(SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and [ or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee henefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The Statement of Profit and Loss expense or
credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as al the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and / or service conditions have not been met When an award is cancelled by
the Group or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments; such as, investment in mutual funds wnit at tair
value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

s Inthe principal market for the asset or Liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fait

value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

econamic best interest.

A fair value measurement of @ non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highes and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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5) Fair value measurement (Contined)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2. Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level nput that is significant to the fir
value measurement os o whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as such as unpairment
testing of goodwill, non-current assets and fair value of em ployvee stock options schemes
Invalvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

1) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and o
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Financial assefs are recognised when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the instriument.

Initial recognition and mensurement

On initial recognition. a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of Financial
assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss ( FVTPL). its transaction
cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases. the transaction cost is
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset

Financial assets are subsequent classified and measured at:

. Amortised cost
. Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassilied subsequent to their recognition, except during the
period the group changes its business madel for managing fnancial assets

W
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Summary of significant accounting policies: (Confinued)

Financial instruments (Continned)

Debt instruments al amortised cost

A debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditicns are
mel:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outsianding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on aequisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables,

Debit instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does nol
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL is classitied as al
FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCT eriteria, ns at FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only
if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (relerred Lo
as “accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (ar, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.¢. removed from the balance sheet)
when

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Fimancial instruments (Comtinned)

Derecognition (Comtinued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has refained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group coentinues to recognise the transferred asset to the exient of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a hasis thal retlects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial labilities at fair value
through profit or loss. loans and borrowings, pavables, as appropriate

All Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans ard
horrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantes contracts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below;

Finaneial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial labilities held for
trading and finanicial linbilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are clussified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial lighilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, only il the eriteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in (C]. These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transterred to Profit and Loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit and loss.
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Summuary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Financial instruments {Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and horrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecogrised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking inte account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Finaneial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts thal require a
payment lo be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debl
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted lor transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amaunt of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing linancial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms ol an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
currying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial insiruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention Lo settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the linbilities
simultancously.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Tnd AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss and equity instruments recognised in OCI. Loss allowance for
trade receivables and insurance claim is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL a1
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For all other financial assets.
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in eredit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL. 1f. In a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts (o recopnising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.



CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Confinued)
Jor year ended March 34, 2024

(% in million)

2.

0

u)

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financisl assets

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses 4 provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and 15
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transterred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquires.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the aeguiree at fair value or at the propertionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets aequired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values For this purpose, the Liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed.
If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the sggregate consideration
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggrepate consideration transferred.
then the gain is recognised in OCT and accumulated m equity as capital reserve. However,
if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCL

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected 10 benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assels or liabilities
of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has heen allocated is tested for impairinent
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. 1T
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount ol any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is
included in the carrving amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstunces is measured based on the relative
vitlues of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
Goodwil| is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances
indicate that the carrving value may be impaired

Rounding of amount:

Amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest million as per the requirement of schedule 111, unless otherwise stated

Cash dividend distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions 1o equity holders of the
parent when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion
of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is
approved by the sharcholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
afficted in future periods.

Significant judgement:
Leases

The application of Ind AS | 16 requires group to make judgements and estimates that affect
the measurement of right-of-use assets and liabilities. The Group determines the lease term
as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the group 1s reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or
nol 1o exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the group 1o exercise the option to
extend the lease. or not to exercise the aption to terminate the lease.
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Significant  accounting  judgments, cstimates and  assumptions:
(Continued)

Significant judgement:
Leases (Comdinned)

The group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities, The Group has adopted
average borrowing rate as it's incremental borrowing rate (IBR).

Estimates
Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefil plans and the present value of the defined obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These Include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporiing date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated m India, the management considers the inlerest rates of
government honds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation. Future sulury increnses are based on expected future inflation rates. The
mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country, Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval n response to demographic changes. Refer
note 28 for sensitivity analysis in reldation to this estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Group. The charge in respect of periodie depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful lives and residual values of Group assets are determined by management at
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at-least on an annual basis and when events that vecur /
changes in circumstances - indicate that the recoverable amount of the CGU s less than its
carrying value,

The impairment indicators, the estimation of expected luture cash flows and the
determination of the fair value of CGU (in¢luding Goodwill) require the Management to
male significant judgements, estimates and assumptions concerning the identification and
validation of impairment indicators, fair value of assets, Revenue growth rates and
operating margins used to caleulate projected future cash flows, relevant risk-adjusted
discount rate, future economic and market conditions, etc. For the details as (o carrying
amount of Goodwill and impairment testing (including related sensitivity analysis), refer
note 33,
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Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

{Continued)
Signilicant judgemeni: {Continued)
Share-based payments

The Group initially measures the ceost of equity-settled transactions with employees using
Black Scholes model to determine the fair value of the Hability incurred. Estimating fuir
value for share-based pavment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This
estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation mode!
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend vield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39,

Claims receivable

It represents the claims made the Group from I[nsurance companies and others on account
of cash loss due to theft or loot ele. at the time of replenishment of cash in ATM’s und cash
deposits and pick-ups.

The Group has recognised the claims in books, when the amount thereol can be measured
reliably and ultimate collection is reasenably certain. The claims receivable balances are
reviewed annually by the management and necessary deubtful provision percentage 1s
calculated on the basis of group’s historical experiences and recoverability of amount from
Insurance companies and others,

Provision for doubtful receivables

The Group has large number of individual customers. Management assesses the level of

allowance for doubtful debts after taking into account ageing analysis and any other factor
specific to individual counterparty and a collective estimate based on historical experience
adjusted for eertain current factors,

Other Provisions

The recognition and measurement of ather provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date, The actual outflow of resaurces at a future date may therefore, vary
from the amount included in other provisions.
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Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumpfions:
(Cantinued)

Sigmificant judgement: (Continued)

Recent pronouncement:

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"™) through a notification,
amended schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, The amendments revise Division 1, 11
and 111 of schedule 111 and are applicable from April |, 2021, Key amendments relating to
Divisien 11 which relate 10 companies whose financial statements are required to comply
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

« Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head *financial liabilities™, duly
distinguished as current or non-current.

+ Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in
equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the
current reporting perod,

« Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters,

» Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payvables, capital work-
in- progress and intangible asset under development.

= If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was barrowed from
hanks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details ol where it has been used.

= Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with
approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, tithe
deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of
benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:
+ Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed
income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head *additional information® in

the notes forming part of financial stalements.

The amendments are extensive and the company will evaluate the same 1o give effect to
them as required by Jaw.
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(ml Non-turrent imvestments
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Sunadry o posazs .33 3
Clauni secorvable w544 10721 -
w7 10445 =
Lenn Tmpainmat sllowsnes for doabifi ] asets #T.6T) | MOy
L4 il 1t 10 | A58

Motes:

Margm money depusits given ns secunty

Margin maney deposits with carmvang amount of T 38 |4 mullion { March 31,2020 - 211 81 million) are subject to 17t charpe to secure the Bank
guarantees | Ted deposits given by banks on beball ol the Groep lor pendugg court cases and deposits of T 2700 mllion (March 31, 2020-3

195 mulleen) are silject o first charge W secure the M illes e Vindtng aivd AT sperations




CMS Info Systems Limited

Comsolidated Notes to financial statements (Confinned)
ay il Meawch 31,2024

(T o il baon

Asal Asal
March 51, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Delerred tax issets
Impairment allwanee for boad amd doubtfol receivables 153.30 t20) 84
Impmirment allowanee Tor doubtful advances clams recavabde ind deposits 1576 2TAT
Provision for emploves benefits and bonus payable #3.32 101 4
Drepreciation B 14 |6
Leases (ER1] 6 T
Uthers [N I
26909 27296
Mreferred tax Habilitles
Deprecmtion 21.26
2126 -
Dlerred wax ssseds (Net) 24783 27196
Deferred ma reconviflintion
As al Asar

Mirrch 31, 2021

Mirch 31, 2020

Opening balinge 2796 IZ7 56
Ty dhirimge the year recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss {25.94) |57 48}
Taw duritig the vear récogmsed in vlher comprehensive mcome .51 LB
Closiog bulawer 247.83 2729
Tax recanciliation
Profit belore tax LITT.50 |25 al
Al statutory inceme faxorate of 251 68% ( March 31, 2020 23, 168%) 504,37 4 93
Effect of chivnge in i rte - o §2
Eftect of nus-teductible emy under i laws 5200 4277
Adjustment of mx celating 10 corlier years 1.9 =
At the effective income tax rale of 25, 168% (March 31, 2020: 25 168%) 692.27 i3 52
Incomi tax expense reported n the Statement of Proft smd Luss 92.27 G352
(Mher Assels
el arneni Current
As il Aaal Anal Al
Pwrch 31, 227 hlarch- 41, 20060 Pellwr e A0, 20121 Masct: 31 1520

Lnswcnred, comulalured good
Adveaces recovernble i kind or R valee fo be recenved 32 0.3 T4 40 s 25
Caprial advances TEan 35355 0,43
Hecesvohle fom Derearmment. Aul borilhics 4746 L 115,52 (NEF 5
Preyiand sagetiivs 1186 L3237 15847 2T

1eh A3 13400 434,44 EED




CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements (Continued)
asa March 382024

% il lion)

Agan AL
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Inventories

Mulwed st lower of cost amd nel realisable valug

Trading goods (refer note below | 456,48 18342
Stores and spares A38.25 472

04,74 430 44
Mote:

Trading stock Includes stoek al ATM saes which sre not installed a5 at March 3] 202 avipunting (o 2 28559 millen (March 31, 2000 - 2
63 54 millon)

Trade Receivables

Secured anil considencd good = =
Ungecured sl considered poud 3.490.95 3344 57
C redlii impaired SB6 36 A 24
407731 383K
Less * Loss allowance (586.34) (0240
3. 490,95 3,344 57

Cash and Bank Balonces
Cash nmd cush equivalents

Halances wilh hunks

Lin curment Cooums 92794 T08 42
Indeposits acoount with oniginal materity of less than three months an0.22 871 14
Cash un hant 094 1Tl
KT T
Bank bakinces other than aboyve
Fuinds hield refuting to cash management activity [refer pote (1) below] 6057 120058
In deposits yccount with ongial metarity for less than 12 months but mone thion three month 45098 170
Margm money depasis {refer note (1) below] £9.79 Tn33
610,54 14 49
Note:

(i) Funds held relating w eash managsment activity représents the net funds mvested by the Graup m ome of the servicey of Cash mamagemem
busineas Thase inclide Dank balinees and Cash o Vaulls as rehuced by the amouits payalsle o customers

(11} Margin money deposits with caerving amuewnt of ¥ 66,25 s (March 31,2020 T 49 91 millien) are subject to first ¢harge to secure the
Bank guarantess | fived deposits given by banks tn behall of the Groug for peniding court casey and depesits of 2354 million (March 31 2020 .
2662 millwon] nre subysel o first charge i secure the facillitics for Vaulting and ATM i



CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements (Continned)
8l Mevel 35 2020

1% a0 millon)

13ia} Share Capital

(i)

[y

1

(i)

Ak oy Ag ]
March 35, 2021 Pl 1, 20000
Amthorised share rapirn
173,000, 000 | Much 31, 920 « 173,000,0000 wquiry shares of € 10 goch 1,700.00 1730 60
| SO0 Dbk 30, 2020 = 1 50,0000 00 1% Uipsmnlly conweriibbe cumlat ve cedeemuble piefermce shases of T
1 ek 15000 (RRELY
158000 1,880 04
bovueed, sl rilbd mmcl Fully poikd ug shusies:
148 O 000 { hnrch 0 300 (48 0060001 squily shnres af T 10 each 1. 480,00 I AR O

Terms and rights attached (o eguily shares

The Group has caly onz ¢lass of equity shares hoving par value of T 10 per share. Each helder of equity shares: s emtithed to tie voie per shire
The Ciivup dechres. and pays dividend s Indin Bupees: This dividend proposed by the Boand of Directors @ subject o thie appeovil of the
sharehalders in the ensuring Annual Gengral Meeting, except in case of interim dividend which is appeoved by the Board of Direclors

I the event of liuidation o (he Group, the Bolders of the eguity shiies will be entithid Te reccivie (he nemiining assets o e Group, o
distraburion of all preferentinl nmonnts The dismibution will be in proporion to the number of squity shares held by the sharehalders

Details of shores held by the bolding Company and sther sharehobders in the Company incloding defoils of shaveholders holiing
meere thin 5% shores in the Company

Asat blarch 31, 2421 Ar sl Mereh 31, 2020
MName o the Shaveholder Mo of Shares * Shareholdusg Mo of Shares e Shurcholding
Enuiry shares of T 10 caeh fully paid up
Sion Inveztmem Hobdegs Me Linsled {Hodding umpary ) 1450 B0, 1AL B 14, B 00 D0 | AN
Tustal 1480, 00000 § A % 4k, BO,03.000 10000
Nofes!

Ag per records of the Group, mcladomg s regaster ol shire holders ¢ members and other dectimtions received Trom shareholders regarding
beneticul mberest, the above share holding represents Both Jegal and benelicm ] owoership of shines

Shares reserved for =see under options
Fur details of options alloted under employee stock oplion schemag, reler note 39

Dhrmig (b vear 2020-24, the Board bas pasd T 36200 mollion uiterm dividsonds, The Dest dividend was declared on May 4, 2020 88 the rae of
TALT0 fer equity sh:_:\fe 1735 of the Ince value of T 10 eachh ond the seeond dividend was declired on Movember 2, 2020 ol the mie of € 0 84
per eaquiky share (8 8% o the face value of T 10 cach) The dividend distribution tax on the said dividends 18 TNl as the Group has withiveld
1% TDS op the Gross devidénd and remittance = dobe net of withhelding tases The wathohding taves ave duly depusited with e
Crovernmint



CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements (Cantinued)
s al March 31,2021

% il lion}

13(b} Other equity

Asat Asal
March 31, 2021 Muarch 31, 2020
A Summary ¢f Other Eguity balance
Securifies preivm
Chpening tikines 42.87 4287
Add Securilies premiarm onshaes ssued durmg the vear - .
Closing balince 42.87 4287
Share based payment reserve (refer note 39 & 40)
Oypreming balance Jh6. 82 3634
Add  Emploves stock epton compensation cost dunng the year 1%.61 1048
Clesmg balance 406,43 ke 82
Capitul redem plion reserve
Cipening balance 130,50 | 5050
Addid: Transter during the veéar - -
Clising balance 150,50 | 5Lk 50
Retained earnings
Upeming balunce 6,443.72 542904
Achd Nen profnomer wx rransherrsd from Siwment of Frolic ond Loss [h85.23 1,347 0%
Less: Dvidend Faid {326l 321 14)
Less: Cither comprehensive momme {13 (LL25)
Clusmg balance 7,764, 96 ba43. 72
Totual B30 U239
[ 3] Mature and purpose of reserves
i Securittes Preminm : The amount received inexeess of Tace value of the ¢quity shares i3 recogmsed 1n Securmgs Premum. Incase of oquiiv-

sottled share based payvment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date god nomimal valog of share s accountiod as socutitizs

FeriL, o0 exgrcse of the ophion

(i) Shure based payment reserves @ The tar valug of the equiyeseitled share bazed pavmenl ansactions 5 recogmsed n Sttement of Probit

and Laogs with comresponting oredit 1o Share bosed payment reserves

jiid) Capitnl Redemption Reserve: The Group hog recopnsed Comtal Redempion Reserve on buybock of egquily shores from s cetained
camings. The amount in Capstal Redemption Beserve §s egual to nominal amount of The equity shares bought back

tiv) Hetalined Tarnings: Hetamed earmngs oie the profiis e the Croup has eaimed tall date, less any trmnsfens to genein| neserve, diadends o

other dhatmbutoong pad W gharcholders




CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements (Confinned)
as o) March 31202

% ao il Lot

14

16

17

Trade Payabies

Curreal
As ut Annt
M A1, 2021 Mareh 31, 20
Dhues of ructo enterproes-and small enderprisss | eelir note 32) 4537 |00 A7
Dhiee £ Gttt ofher ihas necio enberpnses and small enierprises e 2z 1l ad
L] L FLe T
Other Financial linbilities
Mt ewr reind Clarrent
Ax i An ol As at AR
March 31, 2021 Nebprady 10, 2020 Muasch AJ, 2021 March 31, 2020
Liapitsl ereditirs - - 9008 Ti A3
Lo Hhalmbiteis 4500 CEARS AZiLeT Hi i
s iy shde s - = 4 B
Faysble o umiploy sea = ® 48173 249
Actrusd vaparses - - [ Ohe Hu
(hes = % 3304 3
o LR ] &THAT (TR
Provisions
Nan-Current Current
Ax mi A al As AdaL
Mlnrefe 51, 2021 Telinrh 51, 200 Muorch 51, 2021 Mareh 31, 220
Prinisian Tar emphiyee bowelTs
Pt gnmicnry (veler iois 28 ) 140,52 |42 8 1598 -k
For compamintod absemeas BN 4R 1324 1362
FETRIT 19098 00 a1
Other Current Liabilities
Currenl
ey il Aaat
Moarch 11, 2031 My 3, T
Staruipry Dababities Gy groveden eod, s dedocied oo md ohes 1 68,62 14m 53
Linaarngd rgvenig 146,15 NI
am 4571




CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Notes to linancial statements (Continued)
Jar yegr ended Marely 35,2021

AT el

18 Revenue from eperations (refer note 42)

Sale of AT wnd ATH Sites
Sale of producis
Sk of services (refer nole 29

Hevenoe Trom operul s

[etaits of produocts soll

ATM Sparesand related Products
Crirtls

I Mhers

Dretuils of servives rendered

ATM and Cosh management services
AML smrvices

Ul Personali saticn

19 Odther Income

Sundry eredit badances writlen back

Profit on sale of property, plant and egupment (net]
Forcign exchorge gain (met)

Profit o sale of vient inmvestnents

Mt change in i value of curment investments measured 1t FVTEL

Ledse rent concession
Miscellnneous income

20 Finance Incoeme

I mtpest ievme o
Bank depesits
Secunty deposits measaried ol amertsed cosl
Income Tax refund

21 Purchase of traded goods
Purchase of traded goods

Detwily of purchuses

ATM and ATM Silcs

ATM Spares and cebted Products
Coads

For the year ended Far [l year cnded
March 31, 2021 March 312020
162283 133453
GH3.02 1,198 50
10,735,058 11278 35
13,000, 5 13.832 34
436,34 L3l
143.70 o |
1.98 1158
GBI 02 | LI
BAel20 01n 4%
147580 1088 41
Ji4.94 Fhe ug
10, 755.06 (B B ] )
5L.76 g
l.40 373
1229
T.ES 12:92
391 {28
0007 -
1.0 LRL.
99.12 2128
S506 1o 82
ER1] jdn
ri2 @0
59.19 2915
2,009.54 1814 0
1,534.26 s
46,84 4594
(WEWE] 55 84
2.009.54 | 8 {460
s
A
f A



CMS Info Systems Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements (Continued)
Joy e eodod March 31,2021

(% 0 nullon)

22 (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

loventorics al the end of the vear
Triched priinls

Inventories ul the beginning of the year
Tradedd s

13 Emplovee Benefit Expense

Salanies: wages and bonus

ot bmaton to provadens and other funds (refer nute 28}
Gratuily expense {fetes nole I8)

Share hased puiyinents to emplovery (ele note40 and 41)
StalT welfare expenses

24 Finance Costs

Hriterest on bank averdraft
Iriterest ohers
Interest on fease Lablioy

15 Uther Expenses

Senvive ond sedunty charpes
Convevance and lraveling éxpenses
Vhicle msinienunce, hire and fus] cost
Conswmption of slores and spares
Annuni montenanee chorges
Lease rentals
Legal, professaonel aml comsultancy fees
Lo | freight snd forwarding charges
Prwer and efeciricity charges
Insurmnce
Commurication cosis
Agvanees wrtlen off
Trade recervables wnitten off
Lzss - Ot of the prowisien of earber vonrs
fmparmen allowince T bad amd doubiful recenvables and deposits
LChigh dispisal charges
Imsurance Clorms recieviables wrlen off
Less . Qut of the provision of earbier years
fmpasrment allowanee Tor doobrful maurnee chums
Advances and other Debit balanee written off
Lgss | O of the provision of eaclier veurs
Cash lost intransit
Repsurs amd momienanee Building
= Mant and Machingry
= [lihiers

Pavment to awdimors
A auditopy

Audat Tees

Eeimbursament of expenses
Foreign exchiange loss {ngt)
Expensdituse wn corporate sodal responsibality (Refer Mote 34)
NMhseellantous expenses

Far the year ended

For thie yeun enked

Mairch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
456,48 (4342
183,42 28200

1273.06) 93 58
1,770.35 1993 44
145,59 12K 05
32,9 334
19.61 ([T}
3835 4804
201554 2,1v3.53
682 53
2.0 I3 3k
Ti44 732
8132 PEE
L.651.89 3030 5%
S67.67 TOEIT
111684 I305.03
2362 234 4
233,59 179 60
1163 1242
18392 17213
138,61 13540
LN AT
205,07 13704
INTT ESR T

- B8 1T
Ax2a7 i 3|
149.89) (7243
206,00 13260
156,400 | ks ek
12.68 [4 &0
(11.89) {12 60
= 35 7a
1.08 b7

- {1-98)
75.32 2347

L 11 155
.35 NBRTH]
1442 2184
057 657
18 ;28

- fihd
33.40 2540
128,80 3220
6,312.52 T 8601




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Confinuned)
Jor year ended March 31, 202]

(¥ in million)

26.

27,

28.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and equity shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS
compulations:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit e the yeur attributable to equity shureholders 1 65384 [ 34709
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 148,000,004 148,000,000
Weighted average number of equity shares on necoant of 7

Emplovees” stock option scheme for dalutive impact 3814481 BP9, 100
Wenghted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS 151,914,481 121.907.106
Earnings Per Share

Basie (in¥) 11.3% 910
Diluted (in T) 11.0% 887

Capital Work in Progress

The following reflects the Capital work in progress Movement during the years:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Upening CWIIay af 3.3z n1a
i+) Additions during the year 230,85 3931
(=1 Capitalised during the year 38.70 | LA
CMosing CWIP as at 23147 3432

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

During the vear ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 the Group contributed the
following ameunts Lo defined contribution plans:

P'articulars March 31, 2021 barch 31, 2020
Provident fund and Emplovees family pension scheme 119,82 13328
Emplovees’ State Insurance Corporation 59T 3478
Tutal 145.59 58 06

Defined benelit plan

As per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan
Every employee who has completed five years or more of serviee gets gratuity on departure
at 15 days’ salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Group {other
than Securitrans India Private Limited, where the scheme is managed on an unfunded basis)
has purchased an insurance policy o provide for payment of gratuity to the employees, Every
year, the insurance company carries out @ funding valuation based on the latest employee
data provided by the Group. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuations 15
funded by the Group.



CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Confinued)
for year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million)

28.

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Comtinued)

The Group has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash
accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for
a period of one year, The insurance Company, as parl of the policy rules, makes payment of
all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the
policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation
plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Group
is exposed to movement in interest rate in particular, the significant fall in interest rates.
which should result in an increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset

The following tables summaries the components of benefit expense recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance
sheet for the gratuity plan of the Group.

Statement of Profit and Loss- Net employee benefits expense (recognized in employee
cost)

- 1
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 |
Currenl service cost 2315 23.04 |
Blet interest cost 9,81 147
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 3296 5351

[

Net employee benefits expense (recognised in other comprehensive income)

Particulary March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Actuarial losses [ (gains)

- change i demographic assumplions - (0.05)
- change n financial assumptions .61 T3
- eaperience variunce { Le bChunl experience

VS NSFUMpPLOL ) 184 5.9
- Return on plon assets, excluding amount recopnized n
net mierest expense {1.25) (.4
Components of defined benelit cost recognized in oiher 2.20 4.1

comprehensive income

Balance Sheet:

Details of provision and fair value of plan assets

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of obligation 20230 20003
Fair valug of plon asset 46001 424
Net liability 156,79 15899 |
|

e



CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for year ended March 31, 2021

{T in million)

28.

Employee benefits (Continued)

Balance Sheet: (Continued)

Changes in present value of obligation

Particulars

Present value of obligation at the beginmmg of the year
Curjent scrvice cost

Interest expense

Re-measurement (gain) / loss ansing from

- chiange i demograpliic assumplions

- change in fnancial dssumptions

- experience variance (1€ actual expenence vs
aszUmpLons)

Past service cogl

Henefits paid

Present value of obligation af the end

March 31, 2021 wlareh 31, 2020
20103 18021

1315 2304

1297 1347

- ((05)

.61 773

18 5,96

37.79) (2933)

20280 20103

Changes in the fair value of plan asset are as follows:

I Particulars

Faur value of plan assets at the begnning
Investment income

Employver's contribution

BHenelits pad

Re-measurement gain / (loss) arising from

Return on plan assers, excludmg amawnl recogized i pet
INEETER] EXpense

March 31, 2021

=
March 31, 2020

Fair value of plan assets as at the end

4204 w81
2.72 300
- 1031)

125 10 46)
401 42404

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of tatal plan assets are

as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Investment witly insures 100% 100

|
|

The Group expects to contribute T Nil (March 31, 2020 - ¥ Nil) to gratuity fund during the

annual period beginning after balance sheet date.

The following is the maturity profile of the Group's defined benefit obligation

Farticuinrs

Weighted average duration (based on discuunted cash flows)

March 31, 2021

Tio 12 vears

March 315 2020

7w 12 years




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million)

28.  Employee henefits (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of plan asset are as follows: (Continued)

Group's expecied cash flows over March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
the future period (on undiscounted

Iwsisn)

| year 17.82 1434
2105 yelirs 71.06 T2
Gt 10 yeurs 4506 #3.92
Maie than L) yeirs 220.39 222 U4

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Ciroup’s
plan are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Dhscounl rate 6.25% = 6.60% 0.23% - 6,00%
Salary Growth rale 1% for FY 2020 and 0% for PY 2021 and
5% there after Fu there after
Employee Attrition rage
- Lessthan § years of sérvice % 25%
A% % |

- Mure than 5 years of service

['he estimates of future salary increases. considered in actuarial valuation, takes in account
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in
the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date. applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for the significant assumptions en defined benefit
obligation as at March 31, 2021 is as shown below,

Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Decrense in - Decrease in Decrease in Incrense m |
assumption  assumplion assumplion assumipiion
[
Disgount Rate (=/+1%%) 1886 (16.38) |4 85 (13.96)
% change campared to base dug 1o 9. 3% -H.08% Y 38% ST |
sensitivity)
Sutary Growth Rate (</+1%4) (16.34) 1345 {16340 15590
(% change compared (o base dug o -8.06%% 6.63% “B21% 883%
sensHivity)
Artrition Rate (= 50% of attntion rates) (3.05) 1.22 [330) 413
|
{% change compared to base due o -1L.50% 0.6(1% - 7404 2I9%, |
sensitivity ) |
Mortality Rabe {1056 of Martality [T .06 (0 D) LRRY )
rates) |
(% change compised to base due to D03 0.03% -0.03% U.05%
sensilvity)




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million)

28.

29.

Employee benefits (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of plan asset are as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on & method that extrapolates the
impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
oceurting at the end of reporting period.

Other long term employee benefits

In accordance with its leave policy, the Group has provided for leave encashment on the
basis of un actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year.

Amount of T 1549 million (March 31, 2020: 2 |5.64 millien) for Compensated absences is
recognised as an expense and included in “Emplovee benefils™ in the Statement of Profil and
Loss. Accumulated non-current liahility amount 10 % 50,19 million (March 31, 2020: ¥ 48.07
million) and accumulated current liability amount 10 T 13.24 million (March 31, 2020: ¥
10,62 milhon).

Operating leases

Group as lessee:

Effective April |, 2019, the group adopted Ind AS | 16 “Leases” and applied the standard to
ull lesse contracts existing on | April 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Under
this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative ¢ffect of initally
applying the standard recognized at the date of nitial application. The group ¢lected to use
the transition praetical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease al
April 1,2019. Consequently, the group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use assets
representing the right to use the underiying assets.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March
2021:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Lease Lisbilines 3T 231.50
Mon-virrent Lease Linbalities Q4538 a31.66
'utal 1,266.35 &85 16

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulirs March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as at 01 Apnil 865,10 Thl.08
Additions Todh40 28533
Finanee cost acerued durimg the year 734 67.32
Deletions (16.59) :
Lense remt concessin 20107 -
Payment of lease lability (245.69) (2459 18)
Balance as of 31 March 1. 264.35 8BS 16




CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Coanfinued)

for year ended March 31, 2021
(T in million)

29.  Operating Leases (continued)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liahilities as at

31 March 2021 onan undiscounted basis:

'_Partlc ulars

Less than ene year
One o five yeus

Maore than five years

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total

3007 2.500.14
1.044.24 Tib.64
296,93 17521
1,662.04 1,162 04

The following is the movement in Right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars

Balance as of O Apnl

Addinons lunng the year
Dreletions durng the vear

De-recognition of right to use asset

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Balance as of 31 March

83850 761.69
760,40 28533
(218.14)
1.1707"}6] {1.208.43) |
1,210.79 83859 |

The group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to itz lease liabilities as the
current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease linbilities as and when

they fall due.



CMS Info Systems Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million)

29,

Operating leases (continned)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April
2020 is 8.5%.

The outflow on account of lease liahilities for the year ended 31 March 2021 is ¥ 245.68
millien.

Group as lessor: lease receivables

The Group has entered into lease arrangement for its ATM management service business,
The lease at inception is classified as operating lease. These leases have terms ranging
between five and seven years, Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases are_ as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Wilhin one year 15.08 123 .80
Afler one year but nol more than five vears 21.56 T228

More than five years -

Fotal 39.61 196,08 |
|

During the current vear, the Group has recognized ¥ 116.28 million (Mareh 31, 2020 - ¥
123.80 million) as income in relation o the above arrangements. These are reported under
sale of services (refer note 18). The above lease rentals are fixed maonthly fees.

I'he following are the details of the fixed assets given on operating lease:

[ Particutars Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Ciross block valug 1,322.90 125 06
Less: Accumulated Deprecianion (184.38) (5340
Net block value 1,138.32 71 60
Depreciation lor the vear H6.6Y 19.u3
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30.  Related party disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and related party relationship

Reluted parties where control exisis

Ultimate Holding Company Barmg Frivate Equity Asia GP V1 Limited

Parent of Holding Company Baring Private Eguily Asia V1 Haldings Ple, Limited
Entities wnder commaon control Yaull Co-fnvestment Vehicle LT

Holding Company Sion Investment Holdings Ple. Limited

Names of related parties and related party relationship

(Mher Related parties

koey Management Personmel (KMP} Whole Time Direcior & Chiel Executive Officer
- Mr Kapiv Kaul

Chief Financial Officer
= Mr, Panksi Khandelbwal

Nun-Executive Independent Director
- Mz Shyamala Gopinath
= Mr Krishnn Mol Salnm

(upto 31 March 20213

Mon- Executive Direciors
- Mr. Ashish Agrowal
- Mr Jimmy Lachmandas Mahtan

Company Secrelary
- Mr Praveen Soni
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(¥ i million)

31.

)

b)

ch

d)

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

Contingent liabilities:

Purticulars Mareh 31, 2021 Munrch 31, 2020

Claims against the Group not scknowledged s debt
a) Disputed Customs matters® §7.91 1278
by Dsputed VAT mallers® 47,77 24389
¢l [isputed Excise matters™ 69.03 69003
dy Disputed CST matiers * .50 G0
¢} Disputed GST matters * (1. 74 2861
{1 Dispuled Service tax matters * 7.5 -
wr  Employes litigation mafiers 13.25 -
by Disputed Income tax mutter 118.33 L

Total £80.72 392.61

*In relation 1o the matiers of GST, Service tax, Customs duty, VAT, CST, Income tax,
Excise matters and Employee litigation matters as listed above, the Group is conlesting the
demands from the respective Govemnment Departments. The management believes that its
position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No expense has been accrued in the
financial statements for these demand raised The management believes that the ultimate
outcome of this proceeding will not have a materinl adverse effect on the Group's financial
position and results of operations.

During the year 2016-17, one of the customers withheld the amount due to Securitrans India
Private Limited (“SIPL"). subsidiary of the Company for providing cash replenishment
services on aceount of an alleged instance of misappropriation by two employees ol SIPL.
Since the parties failed to resolve the dispute amicably. SIPL serveda notice of pending dues
1o the customer on January 17, 2017. SIPL and the customer have appointed their respective
arbitrators and the matter is currently pending before arbitration Tribunal and the
management is confident of recovering the entire amount.

Considering the litigation involved, the Company has provided for doubtful receivables
based on the best judgment assessment of the case. The management believes that the
provision made in the books is sufficient to cover the liability for loss, if any, which would
be confirmed only after the final result of the litigation.

Since the matter is under litigation, the disclosures required as per the provisions of Ind AS
37 relating to the provisions made are not given as il Is expected to prejudice seriously the
position of the Company with regards to the litigation.

The estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and not
provided for as at March 31, 2021 is T 548.27 million (March 31. 2020 T 67.61 million),

There has been a Supreme Court (5C) judgement dated 28th February 2019, relating (o
components of salary structure that need to be taken into account while computing the
contribution to provident fund under the EPF Act. The group believes, based on legal
opinion, that the liability if any would be prospective from the date of order. Based on such
opinion and pending clarification from PF authorities, the group has recorded the cost
prospectively from March 2019

In addition. there are certain civil claims against the Group, the impact of which is not
quantifiable. The Management is confident, that these will not have any material impact in
the financial statement,
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32,

33.

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Aet, 2006

The Group has ¥ 45.27 million (March 31, 2020 T 100.37) dues outstanding to the micro and
small enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. This
has been relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smoll enterprises 4527 10837
(s per the intimation received from vendors)
i Prncipal and interest amount remainiog unpaid - T
b Interest paad by the Growp in terms of Section 16 of the Migru, = =
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Ace 2006, along
with the amount of the pavment made bo the suppler beyond (he
appirinted day
e Interest due and payable tor the period of delay in making - -
payment (which have been paid bul beyond the appoinied day
durmng the period) bul withoat odding interest speei fed ander
the Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises Act, 2006
d  Imerest novmed and remaining unpaid

o loterest remnining due and paysble even in the succesding
venrs, until such dnate when the interest does as above are

actually paid to the smadl eoterprises

Impairment test of Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have indefinite lives. Out of the tatal
Goodwill of the Group, the material amount of goodwill is allocated to the following
segments:

a) 69425 million (March 31, 2020: T 694.25 million). relates to the Cash Management
division of the Holding Company.

by T 1,147.52 million (March 31, 2020: ¥ [,147.52 million), relates to one of the
subsidigry- “Securitrans India Private Limited”.

¢) T 185.94 million (March 31, 2020: T 185.94 million), relates to the acquisition of door
step banking business from Checkmate Services Private Limited; also a part of Cash
management business.

The Group performed its annual impairment test for vears ended March 31, 2021 and March
31, 2020. The Group considers the relationship between its value in use and its carrying
value, among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill is determined based on a value in use (*VIU")
calculated using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management
covering a period of five year period and the terminal value (alter considering the relevant
long-term growth rate} at the end of the said forecast periods, The Group has extrapolated
cash tlows bevond § years using a growth rate of 4% for the vear ended March 31, 2021
(March 31,2020: 4%). The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for
impairment testing is 13.7% for March 31, 2021 (March 31.2020: 13.7%).

\\./'
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33.

Impairment test of Goodwill (Continued)

The said cash flow projections are based on the senior management past experience as well
as expected trends for the future periods. The calculation of weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) is based on the group's estimated capital structure as relevant and attributable to
the CGU. The WACC is also adjusted for specific risks, market risks and premium. and other
inherent risks associated with similar type of investments to arrive at an approximation of
the WACC of a comparable market participant. The said WACC being pre-tax discount rates
reflecting specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs, are then applied to the above
mentioned projections of the estimated future cash flows to arrive at the discounted cash
flows.

The key assumptions used in the determination of VIU are the revenue annual growth rates
and the EBITDA growth rate.

Bosed on the above assumptions and analysis, no impairment was identified as al
March 31, 2021. Further, on the analysis of the said calculation’s sensitivity 1o a reasonably
possible change in any of the above mentioned key assumptions / parameters on which the
Management has based determination of the CGU's recoverable amount, there are no
scenarios identified by the Management wherein the carrying value could exceed its
recoverable amount.

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility

As per section 35 of the Act. a CSR committee has been formed by the Group. The funds
are utilised throughout the year on activities which are specified in Schadule VI of the Act.
Gross amount required to be spenmt by the group during the vear is ¥ 31.69 million
(Murch 31,2020 T 26,97 million).

Particulars Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amounts spent during the In Yet to be Total | Incash et to be Tuotal
year - cash | paid in cash pried i wash
(1) | Constructon S acquisition of - - . - - ==
Ay Assel
() | On purpose other than (i) 33.40 - 3340 | 25400 250
above
Fair value hierarchy
The tollowing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
asseis and financial liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy as at March 31, 2021
Cust Fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
Assels meusored ar Tair
vitllue
FYTPL financial
imvestments
Investment in matial Bl 1,116.70 1,122 55 112255 -
s
Investment in unguoted cyuity LIS .08 - - .U
shares
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36.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy as at March 31, 2020

ost Fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3

Assers mensured o Tair
value

FYTEL financial

investme nts

Investrriemt i mutuad (o 560 50 56623 565,23 - .
unies

Investment in ungquobed equity .08 (.08 - - (.08
shares

The fair value for the investments is arrived at with reference to the Net asset value (NAV)
of the mutual fund unit as disclosed by the Asset Management Company.

The management assessed that eash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
and other current financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further the difference between
carry ing amount and fair value of insurance receivables, deposit measured at amortized cost
is not significantly different in each of the year presented.

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Particulnrs March 31, 2021 Ml 31, 2020
Trade receivables 3,490.94 3344 57
Cash and cash equivalents 1,335,104 1.591.30
Criher hank hilances 61034 1419
Other financial nssels 2,154.85 1,674 83
Fotal financial assets carcied at amortised eost ) 7.591.27 3 0 BY

Break up of financial Habilities carried at amortised cost

| Particulars Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
| Trasle payahles 2,055.77 171271
Other financial liabilities 3,6K2.55 243534
Total financial Habilities carried at amortised cosi 5,738.32 4. 148,08

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a foreed or liguidation sale

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group through it operations is exposed to credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group’s
serior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s sénior
management ensures that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The senior management reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

-

-
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36.  Financial risk management objectives and policies(Contiaued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading toa financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's established policy. To minimise the risk
from the counter parties the Group enters into financial transaction with counter parties who
are major names in the industry.

A significant risk in respect of receivables is related to the default risk and eredit risk. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are Grouped into homogenous
Groups and assessed for impairment collectively, The calculation is based on historical data
The maximum exposure Lo credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of receivables
disclosed in Nate |1 The Group does not hold collateral as security.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if 8 costomer or counter-party Fails (o
meet its contractual obligations. Trade receivables concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade receivables are limited, due |o the Group's customer base being large and diverse,

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk from customers:

Coross Carrying Amount March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current (nof past due ) #12.62 1.293.68
|t 30 days past due | 17286 504,97
3w bl days past due 534,72 39387
61 to 1RO divs past due 556.55 64768
Above 180 days past due L 10055 U381
[ Carund Total 4,077.30 3,824 81

The above exposure includes Three customers whose individual credit exposure exceeds
10%% of total trade receivables.

Movement in allowance of impairment in respect of trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Halance as at Aprd U] 450.24 41947
Amounts written ofF { Hel ) (99 59) (72.83)
Net re-ménsirement of loss allowinces 206,00 13260
Balance as: ot March 51 S86.30 80 24

Security deposits are interest free deposits given by the group for properties taken on Lease.
Provision is taken on a case to case basis depending on circumstances with respect to non-
recoverability of the amount. The gross carrying amount of Security deposit is ¥ 83.94
million as at 31st March 2021 and T91.70 million as at 3 1st March 2020,

Cither financial asset includes claims receivable, Unbilled revenue and other receivables
(refer note 7). Provision is made where there is significant increase in credit risk of the asset.
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36.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Maovement in allowance of impairment in respect of other receivables:

Puarticulars March 31, 2021 Mareh 31,2020
Balance as at Apnl U1 10956 G40
Aamounts swrilten off{ Met ) (11.8M RENH
Met re-measurement of loss allownnces n 3376
Balarce as gt March 31 9TeT 168 56

Trade receivables
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are seftled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage 10 the Company’s reputation,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liguidity position on the basis of
expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios and takes into account the
aceessibility of cash and eash equivalents.

The Group has sufficient current assets comprising of Trade Receivables, Cash & Cash
Equivalents. Investment in Mumal Funds, Other Bank Balances (other than restricted
balances), Leans, Inventories and Other Current Financial Assets 1o manage the liguidity
risk, if any in relation to current financial lLiabilities.

The Greup’s ohjective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of cash credit, working capital demand loan-and bank foans, The Group has
avcess to a sufficient variety of sources of funding, The table below provides details
regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021

l Particulars Ondemamnd  Within 12 months 1 10 5 years Above 5 vears Total

| Trade payables - 205877 - - 205577 |
Cither financiol - AT 1.019.57 294.61 405135
Inabilates
Toul - 79294 1,957 204.01 6,107.12

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities as at March 31, 2020,

Purticulars Oy degamand Within 12 menths | 105 years Above 5 vears Toml
Feade pavables - L1270 - . el e |
Uither Tinancal - | B0 68 73323 L7650 271181

Frabaluties

Tutal ; 351439 1IN 176 U} 44245 |
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36.

37.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Capital management

For the purpose of the Group's capital management. capital includes issued equity capital,
securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
pareni. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is (o maximize the
shareholder value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group ineludes within net debt,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. In order to achieve
this overall objective, the Group®s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that
define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings The Group does not have any
loans outstanding as at March 31, 2021, It has taken adequate credit facilities from various
banks to maintain its liquidity

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended March 31, 202 | and March 31, 2020.

Provision for warraniy

A provision of ¥ NIL as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: T NIL) is carried against
expected warranty claims on sale of ATM sites and related products as at March 31, 2021,
The provision is recognized based on historical experience and expected costs that will be
incurred on providing repairs and maintenance services during the warranty period.
Assumptions used to caleulate the provision for warranty is based on current sales levels and
current information available based on the warranty period for the ATM sites and related
products sald. The table below gives information about movement in warranty provision
during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 3 1. 2020.

Particulars Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2620

| Al the begmning of the year = 1056
Arsing during the vear - -
Utilized / reversed during the vear - 119:5h)

Unwinding of finnnee cogt = L

At the emd of the year - -
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38.

Operating Segment

The segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group’s risks
and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products sold and
services rendered, The operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of the products sold and services rendered, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and services. For
management purposcs, the Group is organized into business units based on the nuture of
services rendered and products sold into the following reportable segments.

a) Cash management services include ATM services: Cash delivery and pick-up, Network
cash  management services (together known as “Retail cash management services™)
and other related services

b) Managed services division includes income from sale of ATM and ATM sites and
related products and maintenance services.

¢} Card division inchudes revenue from trading in card and card personalization services.

No operating segments have been aggregated 1o form the above reportable operating
segments. The Board of Directors of the Group monitors the eperating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements, However,
the Group's financing (including finance costs and finance income) and income taxes are
managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments

Finance income and certain finance costs, and fair value gains and losses on linancial asset
are not allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on
Group basis. Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not
allocated to thuse segments as they are also managed on Group basis. Capital Expenditure
consists of addition of property, plant and equipment, mtangible assets and capital advances.
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39.  Employee Stock Option Schemes

The Holding company has granted stock options to its employees through its equity settled
schemes referred to as Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016, CEO Stock Option Scheme
2010 and Management Scheme 2016, Following are details of the scheme:

Purticulars Empluyee CED Scheme Management
Scheme Scheme

Mumber of options reserved under the 4,604 444 U, 866,667 1.973,333

scheme

Mumber al oplion granted 4,175,000 9800007

under the scheme

The vesting period of the grants is as follows:

Visting Period Employee Scheme CEOQ Scheme
Time Bosed Performance Time Based
. Based®
12 months: from dage of grant 5% 0 004 0
21 months from date of grant B35 16 67% -
| 33 months from date of grani B350 [6.67% -
A5 muintles friom cate of grant B.3d% | 61, Dofa% s

For options granted under Employee scheme, 215t month vesting will be based on Group /
business unit performance for the second financial year after the financial year in which the
options have been granted and so on. The performance condition are assessed as non-market
conditions.

The vested options can be exercised by the employees only upon happening of liquidity
event. In case of listing, being a liquidity event, the vested options can be exercised within
| year of the date such options are vested in case of employee scheme and within 2 years
from date of such options vested in case of CEQ scheme. In any other liquidity event, the
vested options can be exercised within such period as may be prescribed by the Board in this
regard.

e
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39 Employee Stock Option Schemes (Continued)

The following table summarizes the movement in stock options granted during the year:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Cmployee CEO Employes CEQ
scheme Scheme scheme Scheme

Outstanding at the begmnme of (he 3,555,750 9 866,667 3 R0G 40e QR66067
year
Gramted during the period - - 125,000 -
Furlerted / cancelled during the perod (34,000) - 1374.659) -
Exercised during fhe period - - - o
Exprred during the period - - . -
Ouisinnding af the end of the year 3,521,750 0,866,667 3,555,730 G B6E GAT
Welghied average exercise price of
options (in %)
Chutstanding at the beginnmg of the 125 123 125 123
Ve

| Granted during the véar - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the yem 125 123 125 123
Exgrcisable at the end of the year - - . -
Werghted avernge remaining 04 - 07 .
contractual ife (in years)
Weightad average fair value of options - - 3 -

prantéd during the yenr (in ¥)

The Group has used Black Scholes option pricing model. The following tables list the inputs
to the models used for the both Employee and CEO plans

Farticulars Assumptions

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Davidend vield (%) (W4 (M
Expected volauluy (%) 25% - 29% 5% - 20%
Rask-free mterest rate (%) 6% 6%
Expoorod life of share options (vears) 3.7 years 3.7 years
Weghted average fair value per share (in 9 143 143

The expected life of the share options is based on current expectations and is not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may oceur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is
indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily he the actual outcome, The historical
volatility is based on price volatility of listed companies in same or similar industry. The
holding company has allotted employee stock options to some of its employees through its
Employce Stock Option Scheme. Over the year's 653,250 stock options hias expired and
lapsed on account of employees left the organization and accordingly reversal on account of
same is recognized in the profit and loss account aggregating to 21.06 million. The group
has recogmized 34.97 million. (March 31, 2020 —  9.98 million) as emplovee benelit
expense in relation to all the active options outstanding as at March 31,2021
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40. Agreement between Promoter and CEQ

On September 26th, 2017, Vault Co-Investment Vehicle L.P. (*Vault L.P.”), a limited
liability partnership incorporated in the Cayman Islands and controlled by Barings Private
Equity Asia GP VI Limited, the ultimate promoter of SION Investment Holdings Pre.
Limited (“Sion™), the helding company, entered into an agreement with Chief Executive
Oftficer of the Company (CEO) pursuant to which, the CEQ was granted options under the
stock option plan of Vault L.P. These options vested immediately to entitle base units m
Vault L.P. to the extent of amount equivalent to 0.6 1% of the value of the Company for a

consideration equivalent to such value of the Company as per the terms and conditions of

the agreement. As per the plan, the base units are entitled for upward adjustment subject to
fulfilment of certain market and service conditions.

Upon redemption of base or adjusted base units, CEQ will receive from Vault L.P., an
amount equivalent to value of the Company vis-vis such units at the ime of sale of Sion's
shareholding in the Company subject to certain conditions set out in the agreement.

Since the option granted 1o CEO [s for the services rendered to the Company, the Option has
been valued considering the various probable scenarios and using specific assumptions
refating to expected volatility and risk free return. The total charge over the period of vesting
estimated is T 70.20 million, The proportionate charge recognized during the current year is
T 15.69 million (March 31, 2020 T 15.69 million)

41.  Additional information to be disclosed as required under Schedule 111 to
the Companies Act, 2013, of all enterprises consolidated:
As at March 31, 2021
Particalirs Net assels Lo, totil Share in profil Share in other Share in toial
ussels minus totul comprehensive vom preheasiyve income
liabilities income
Asa Tinmillion | Asa Tin Asa % Tin Asa % T in millivn
%o e million il lion
[ Parent
CMS Info Svstems Limted B7% 951195 W% 151677 5% (078} b 151599
Subsudiaries
Sevuritans [odia Private 12% 1,321.82 9% 151.85 28% (0.38) 9% 15147
L imitesd
| CMS Securitas Limited 0% 29.60 1% 12.54 %% (1.24) 1% 10.30
| %% 330 1% .03 =Td% 1.2 {144 365
| CMS Warshall Limted
(124 01 0% - (1% - %4 =
Quality Logistics Services
Privane Limited
0oy 1668 %% 1.40 % - 0% LA
UMS Securing Employess
Welfare Trust
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41. Additional information to be disclosed as required under Schedule 111 to the
Companies Act, 2013, of all enterprises consolidated (Confinued)

Asat March 31, 2020
Particlars MNet assels 1e, ot Share i profil Share in other Share m tulal
[ assels muris botal com prehiensivi cinnprehensive
liakilitizs ICHme neame
Asaty  Tmmilhon | Asa% T Asa % Tin Az a% Tin
millvon mllion I s
Parent
| CMS Info Systems Limited 87% 8,338,595 935 1.276.63 1% P17 93% 1,275 46
Sulsidiaries
Secunitrans Indio Private 13%% 117021 5% 6HE 90 JUH {4.33) % 64 el
[imuated
CMS Securitas Linted 0 1825 0% (0.83) 26% (2:96) Ve (379
{MS Marshall Limited e (1h.35) L 118 5% (2.73) U 157
Cuahty Logistics Services 0% 010 | 1% - Ma - 0%
Private Limited
CMS Securitas Employees %% 1528 0% 106 ] - 0% | O
| Wellare Trust |

42, Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale of Product

The Group applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IND AS |15 for all contrac!
entered for sale of product and does not disclose information abewt remaining performance
obligation that have original expected duration of one year or less.

Revenue for services

The Group applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IND AS 115 for all contract
entered for revenue from services, whereby it has right to receive consideration from a
customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s
performance completed to date. Hence the Group does not disclose information of remaining
performance obligation of such contracts.

Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control of the products being
sold is transferred to our customer and Revenue from services is recognized over time as and
when services are rendered. Revenue from contracts with customers s disaggregated by
primary business units as given in the note 8.

Reconciliation of revenue recognized with contracted price

I Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1

|

| Revenue as per Contrncted Price 13,363.22 13,978 24
| Reduction {Rebate/discount ) (302.32) (145 41

I Revenue recognized as per thve statemeént of profit and loss 13,060.90 13.832.38 —
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42, Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Confinued)

Movemeni of Deferred Contraet Linbility (uncarned revenue)

The deferred contract liability relates to the consideration received/receivable from customers, for
which services have nol been provided and revenue is deferred for the year.

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 200,21 (HI Y
1) Additions dunng the year (net) 99.17 Lk ded
nh Income recopnized dunmg the venr (162.22) RS
Closing Balanes 146.16 He21

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future from Deferred Contract Liability:

Time Gand March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
withun | years 146,16 17161
1 -2%ear - G40
2-3 Year = G40
3 -4 Youl : v.40
4~ 5 Year g 240 |
Tutal 146.16 209.2)

Obligations for returns, refunds and other similar obligations:

There is no obligation for returns, refunds and other similar obligation as at 31 March 202|
and as at March 2020

43.  Impact of Corona Virus outbreak (COVID-19)

In the short term, Company has adequate resources to sustain the impact of Covid-19. We
do not foresee any material adverse impact in the medium to long term on the business.
Based on our current assessment, no significant impact on earrying value on goodwill.
inventory, trade recelvables; intangible assets, investments and other financial assets is
expected. The actual impact of global pandemic could be different from estimated, as the
COVID scenpario evolves 1n India. The company will conlinue to closely monmitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

44.  Asperamendments in the Income Tax Act, 1961, new Section 115BAA has been introduced
with effect from FY 2019-20 (AY 2020-21) to provide an option for a concessional tax at
the rate of 22%. The Group has evaluated and opted for concessional tax rate in the previous
year,

,
A\
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45.  Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this

year classification.
Note Amount as per previous ¢ Revised amount for

il No. period financials A4 previous year
Statement of Profit and Loss

Sale of ATM zod ATM Sites 18 1,412.06 (57.53) 1,354.53
Sale of services 18 11,221 82 57.53 11,279.35
Purchase of traded goods 21 1,832.02 (17.42) 1,814.60
Annunl maimenance charges a5 162,18 1742 179 64}

As per our report of even date

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

.-_f, |‘r AL

%r—

Koosai Lnll:qr
Partrer
Membership No, 112399

Mumbai
25 May 2021

For and behalf of Bosrd of Directors of
CMS Info Systems Limited

CIN: U435200MH2008PLC1R80479

e

Aty Agraund,

Ashish Agra: iv Kaul

Directar Whole Time Director
and Chief Executive Officer

DIN No: 00163344
Place : Mumbai

-~ —
M

Pankaj Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

DIN No.: 02581313
Place : Texas, USA

Praveen Soni
Campany Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6495

Place: Mumbai

Place: Jaipur




